
 

 

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SELPA 
JOINT POWERS AGENCY BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 
Wednesday, January 17, 2024 

Public Session – 12:00 p.m. 
Via ZOOM – Meeting ID: 882 0161 9790 

Santa Barbara County Education Office –  
Cabinet Conference Rm. 
4400 Cathedral Oaks Rd., Santa Barbara, CA 93110  

Jonata Middle School Library   
301 Second Street, Buellton, CA 93427 

 

Agenda 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting or 
need this agenda provided in a disability-related alternative format, please contact the SBCSELPA Office at (805) 683-

1424. Prompt notification will assist the SBCSELPA to make suitable arrangements. 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE WELCOME 
 
The Santa Barbara County SELPA JPA Board will receive public comments about items appearing on 
today's agenda, as well as other matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. All such 
comments will be received during the Public Comments section of the agenda. Individuals who address the 
Board are limited to three (3) minutes to speak on any item and a total of 10 minutes on all items for their 
presentation.  The Board may limit the total time for all public comments to 30 minutes.   People needing 
additional time are requested to submit the information in writing.  

  
For comments concerning matters not on the agenda, open meeting laws and fairness to other residents who 
may have an interest in your topic prohibit the Board from acting or engaging in extended discussion of your 
concerns.  The Board may direct staff to meet at a later date with speakers who have specific concerns or 
needs.  The Board may also direct that an issue be placed on a future agenda for discussion and 
consideration. This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and receive necessary information and 
for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered. We appreciate your cooperation. 
  
Forms are available from the Board’s secretary for requests to address the Board.  People wishing to make 
public comments are requested to complete the appropriate form and return it to the Board Secretary. 
        

A. Roll Call          
 
B. Flag Salute 

 
C. Welcome Guests  

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Please refer to information above regarding public comment guidelines.  
 
III. APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL EMERGENCY ITEMS (Government Code Section 54954.3(b)(2)) 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF ACTION AGENDA 

 

It is recommended that the JPA Board take action to approve the 
action agenda as presented/amended.    

Motion:__________ 
Second:__________ 
In Favor: _________ 
Opposed:_________ 
Abstained:________ 

 
 
 
 

1



 

2 
 

SBCSELPA JPA BOARD SPECIAL MEETING                                                               JANUARY 17, 2024
  
V. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS – No Consent Agenda.   
        
VI. PRESENTATION – No Presentation. 
 
VII. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION/CONSIDERATION 

A. SBCSELPA Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023  REF: VII-A 
1. Audit Report 
2. Representation Letter 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
VIII. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION  

A. Resignation Notification from Stephanie Kim (formerly Guertin),            REF: VIII-A 
SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator 

1. Resignation Letter 
 

B. Resignation Notification from Alexis Freeborn, SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator       REF: VIII-B 
1. Resignation Letter 

 
IX. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS 

A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion 
  
B. Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting:     Date: February 5, 2024 

Time: 12:00 p.m.  
Location: Jonata Middle School Library, Buellton CA
  

X. ADJOURNMENT  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It is recommended that the JPA Board approve the SBCSELPA 
Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 as 
presented.  

Motion:___________ 
Second:___________ 
In Favor: __________ 
Opposed:__________ 
Abstained:_________
_

2



Date: January 17, 2024 

To: SBCSELPA JPA Board 

From: Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director 

Re: SBCSELPA Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 

BACKGROUND: 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP has conducted the annual audit of the SBCSELPA for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2023. The audit report has been filed with the Santa Barbara County Education Office and with the 
California Department of Education. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Types of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

Materials weaknesses identified? No 
Significant deficiencies identified?  None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

FEDERAL AWARDS 
Internal control over major programs: 

Material weaknesses identified? No 
Significant deficiency identified?  None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? None reported  

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major Federal programs: Unmodified 

Any audit finding disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516  No 

Identification of major Federal Programs: 
CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
84.027A, 84.173, and 84.173A Special Education (IDEA) Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:  $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

SUMMARY: No audit findings reported in the prior year’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The JPA Board approves the SBCSELPA Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2023 as presented. 

RA/RW:lm 

Santa Barbara County 
Special Education Local Plan Area 

A Joint Powers Agency 

REF: VII-A 

3



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION 

LOCAL PLAN AREA 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2023 

REF: VII-A.1
4



 

  

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
June 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

 
Independent Auditors' Report ........................................................................................................................................................... 1 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ........................................................................................................................................... 4 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 

 Government-wide Financial Statements:  
     Statement of Net Position  ................................................................................................................................................ 13 
     Statement of Activities  .................................................................................................................................................... 14 
   
 Fund Financial Statements: 
  
    Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund  ............................................................................................................................... 15 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental  
       Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position  ............................................................................................ 16 
     Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -  
      Governmental Fund ................................................................................................................................................. 17 
     Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in  
  Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities  ........................................................................................................... 18 
   
Notes to Basic Financial Statements  .............................................................................................................................................. 19 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION 

 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund .......................................................................................................................... 37 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Special Education Pass-Through Fund ................................................................................... 38 
Schedule of the SELPA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability .................................................................................. 39 
Schedule of the SELPA’s Contributions ......................................................................................................................................... 41 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION 

 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ................................................................................................................................. 43 
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards .................................................................................................................... 44 
Local Education Agency Organization Structure............................................................................................................................ 45 
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements ......................................................... 46 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis .................................................................................................................................... 47 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
On an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ........................................ 48 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  
Required by the Uniform Guidance ...............................................................................................................................................  49 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cost .................................................................................................................................... 51 
Financial Statement Findings .........................................................................................................................................................  52 
Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs ...........................................................................................................................  53 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings ..................................................................................................................................  54 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

5



6



 

  

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Governing Board  
Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area 
Goleta, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the 
Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area (the SELPA), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the SELPA’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the SELPA, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
SELPA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to 
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about the SELPA’s ability to continue as a going concern 
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial  

1 
2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455   Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147   mlhcpas.com 

 
BEVERLY HILLS � CULVER CITY � SANTA MARIA 

 

7



 

  

 

 

likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
SELPA’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, which raise 
substantial doubt about the SELPA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of the SELPA’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, and the schedule of SELPA contributions, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
SELPA’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, and other supplementary information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  

 

 

2 

8



 

  

and other supplementary information listed in the table of contents are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation 
to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 2023, on our 
consideration of the SELPA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the SELPA’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

Santa Maria, California 
December 18, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 

9



�

��

����������������������������
�

�

�

�

�

����� ���	�
��
�� ��	�����������
��	�� ������� �����	�
�� �
���� ������������ �	��������� ������� ����������

���
�	�������	��
�����������
���������������
��	������������������������
������������ �	���������������

	��	�������
��!����"#$�%#%"$�&�	���
�����	�'�����
���	�
���
��	��������������!����"#$�%#%%(�������������

�	�����
�)���	�
��&�	��	���������������������	�	����	�$�&������������	�����
��
&�	�������	�
�(�

�

�

�������������	
��������
��
��	��





����������
���
����������
���������


�

�������������� �
���
��%#����

�����	���	�$��
�������	������

��$�����	����
��	�������	�
��*������	��	�

��'��)
�����	
 �	����	
���
'�����������������	�
����
 ������������'����(�

�

���� ����� ��� 
� ���+��� ��� �� !
��	� �
&���� � ����$�&����� ��� 	����������� ��� ����������	�  
'������	���

� ����(������������� 
'���������	��������!
��	��
&����� ������
���$�&���������
��������
���� �	�'
	�� �

�������(� ���� �
���� ��� �
�������� 
�� 	��� �
��	�� ������	�����	� 
�� ��

��� ���� �������	�����	�� 
��

���	���	�������	�����������
��	�������	�������
��
&�,�	&
�����������
���
�-�����	����'�������	���	�����

�
�	�� ��	�� �������� �
��	�$� 	&
��������� ��
�� �
�-�����	� ���'���� ���	���	�� ��� �
�	�� ��	�� ��������

�
��	�$�
������������
�������	����'�������	���	�������	�����������
��	�$�
������������
���
�-�����	�

���'�������	���	$���	��.��+�/������������������	�
���
��
�	����������	������	�����������
��	������
���

���������
����0-�%� ������� �����

�����	���	(������
��	��������	�����	�
����

������'����
�	���
�����

�������� �	���������
��	����
���(�

�

�

��������
��
���
�������	
����������





���
� ���� �!
�����"���#


�

���������������	�	����	��������	����������������������
��	�����	�'�	����
��	�����	�����������
��	���������

�����	�
�� �
���� ����� ����� ���� � 	��� ��	� ��	��� ����
���� ��� ����������� ��� 1
'������	��� ���
��	�� �

	���������
�����1����	�	����	�2
(�"3(�

�

��������������	
�����������������������������	�	����������������	����
��	����������
��	�����
�
����

���
����������������	��
�������� �	�����������������
�����
��	�� (������������	� 
'������	�����	�'�	���(�

������ �	�	����	�� �������� ���� ����	�� 
�� 	��� ����� ��������� � ����	��� ���� �� �	-	
-���� ������� ����	��$�

��������� 
�	��
&�� 
�� ���
�����$� ��� &���� ��� ���� �������	���� ��������� � �
� -	���� �������	����$� ���� ���������

����
&��
�����
�����(�����	�
�����$����	�����������	�
�����'��
�������������������������	����	�	����	����

�� �����	
���	���������	�'�	�$���������$����������'�����(�

�

�

3

10



�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%"�

�

������������	
���������������������������������������� �	�����
�
�������
����������������	��
����

����	�����������������
�����
��	�� (�

�

�������������������������������������	�	����	���
��	����
��
&�� ���	� 
���
����	�'�	�,���

�

��������������������������������������� �	���������	��������������
����������������	��
��������	���

�
���������������������
�����
��	�� (�

�

�������������� �� ��� ���� ��������� ���������� �� �������������	
��� ��������� ����������� ��� ��
'����� 	
�

�7������	�������������������	������	�����	� ��	�������
���(�

�

���������������	�
��	��� 
'������	����	�����	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
�������������(�

�

�

���������
���
��	��
��
�
���	�





���
�����"���
�$
���
��# � ��
���
���
�����"���
�$
��� � � �#


�

�������������������������������	����������������������������
�	����
���	�
����
�	�	�������������&�
�������

��
�	��	����	�'�	���(��������	�	����	�����������������	�$����������
�	��
&��
�����
�����$��������	���$��������������

����
&��
�����
������
��	������������ �	�����������������
�����
��	�� �&����������������	
�	������
��	�� ���������

�
�	����'�	�-���	
���
�������(�����
��	���������	����������'�����������7�����������	�8�����	
����
��	��� ��������


��&�����������������'���
������(�

�

������ 	&
��	�	����	�� ���
�	�
�� 	������������	��
��	�
���������� ��� ��� 	���(�2�	��
��	�
�� ��� 	��������������

��	&��������	���������������
�	��
&��
�����
�����$������������	���������������������
&��
�����
�����$�&��������
���

&���	
���������	������������������������	�$�
�������������
��	�
�(�*'���	���$�����������
��������������	����������

��	� �
��	�
�� &���� ���'�� ��� �� ������� ������	
�� 
�� &��	���� 	��� ���������� �
��	�
�� 
�� 	��� ����� ��� ����
'�� � 
��

��	���
��	�� (�*	���� ���	
��� 	
��
��������������� ��� ��� 	���������� ������ ���	��	�
������	����
���	�
��
�� 	���

�������������	���(�

�

��������	�
��������	&������'�����������7������� ���	��������������������������������	��� 
'����� ��
������

����
�������	�� ��� 	
� ��
'���� ���'����� 	
� 
�������������	���	�� ���� 	����� �	����	�� ���� �
	� 	
�  �����	�� ��
��	� ���

�
�����������	�	�����
$�
������	��
�������
	�������	
���&�����'����	�� �	���
'����������	��
��	�������(�����

9����	��
��	�������
�	�������
 �������
'�����&������8�������������
�	��	��
��
���	����	�����'����	�
�(�

�

:��	�����������������������������	�����������������������$�&��������	�	����������	�'�	��������
��
&�,�

�

������"����!
��� � � �#�-�����
��	�������������'������������
�	������	������	� 
��(�����������������
'���� ���������

�����	�
����
 ������������'����(�

�

�

�

�

�

�

;

11



�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%"�

�

�

���������
���
��	��%�
����
����������
���&�





����
� ���� �!
�����"���#


�

��������������������	�	����	����
'������	������ ���
���	�
����
�	�	���1�������<��������	���������������	�
��

����-���
� ��<����-��
	�	�������������&�
��(�
���������������9������	
������	������������	�	����&��������

�
��� �
'����	�(�=
&�'��$����� ����	�������	�������
	���� ������ 	
������ �	� �
�	�
�� �������� ���
���� �
��

���	�����������
����
��	
���
&�	��	��	�������	�� ��� �������
�������	�����
������ ����	����	�7��$� ���	�$�����
	����

�
����	��	��	������'�����
��	���>((�6����	���	�
�������	�
�(�

�

������"����!
����#�-�����
��	�������������������'������������
�	������ 
'������	��������$�&������
����
���
&�

�
������
&����	
�����
�	�
��	�
�������������	���������������	��	�����-����	��	������'���������
��������� (�������

�������������
�	������� �������
��	�� ���	�
����������
�����������������
��	�� $�&���������������������������


	�����������������	��	��	�����������������
�'��	���	
�����(����� 
'������	���������	�	����	����
'��������	������

��
�	-	����'��&
��	���������� ������� 
'������	�
����	�
�������	������������'������	���
'����(�1
'������	���

��������
���	�
����������	�������&��	����	����������
���
����&����������������
������	��	������������	����	���

����� ��	���� 	
� �������� 	��� ������� ��
 ����(� ���� ������������ 
�� �����	�� ��� 	���  
'������	��� ����� ����������

�	�	����	��	
�	�
������	��� 
'������	-&���������������	�	����	�������7����������������
������	�
���
��
&�� �	���

 
'������	�������������������	�	����	�(�

�

�

�������	
����	�����





�'���� ��
��""��(


�

����������
������������ ����	���	������������
��	�
����
����������� ������������������������
'����
������
�

	��	�	�������������	���������	�	������	���	�������	����	��&�����'�������	�����������
��	�(����
��	����	���������

�
�������	��� ������� �������$��
�-����������

����������	�$���
�����
������'��
����	�����	������ ��	��	�&�����
	�

�������7�������������
� �	����
���	��������!����
�����
�������
��	�
�����	���%#%"-%#%3����

������(�����!���

�
�������
��	���?�$@0A$#AA�
������� �<������������	
��
�	�����	
���
'����4��	���=���	����'�����������������
�	�

�

����
�����	�������	���
�-����������

���	��
� ��	���%#%"-%#%3����

������$���������&�����
��
� ��������'��

4��	���=���	�������� ��� ����� �%#%"-%#%3(��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

@

12



�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%"�

�

�

���
��	��
��
�
���	�





���
��# � ��


�

�������������	��
��	�
��&���?"$;�0$3A#$��
��	���������������������!����"#$�%#%"(�*��	������
��	$�?;0$;03�&���

�����	���	����������	����	��
��	�
�(�B��	���	�����	��
��	�
��������
�	���������	����	
���
&��� ����
��	����	����
��

���	��
'����	�$� ���	
��$��
��	�	�	�
������
'���
��$������������ ��� ����	�
��	��	�����	��	��� 
'����� ��
������

�����	��	
�����	��	���	��
��	�
���
�����-	
-����
����	�
��(�*���������������
&$�������������
��$��
������
��	���

��	��
��	�
�������������������� �������	��
��	�
���������%��
��	���������� 
'������	�����	�'�	���(�

�

��)!�
*


�
����?;0$;03���������	���	����������	����	��
��	�
��
������ 
'������	�����	�'�	������������	��	�����������	��������	��


���������	��������
����	�
��(�>����	���	����������	����	��
��	�
���������������?0%"$000$�
���#@(0C������
�������	
�

	������'�
�������5����������
��?�D@3$3#;�(������� �������	������������������	���	�����	��
��	�
���������	
�������	����

�7���������
�������	���	���	
����	���	�������� �	���%#%%-%#%"������������(�����
'������������������2�	��
��	�
��

&���?�;@$3""��
���(;DC(�

A

%#%" %#%%

����	�

������	�����
	��������	� �@$�#@$3D3?� %A$""0$#A%?�

����	�������	�������� �	-	
-���������������	 ";"$@�;���������� 3#;$0D%����������

�
	�������	� �@$3@#$#00���� %A$A3;$#;3����

6��������
�	��
&��
�����
����� �$;A3$D;@������ "%%$�#0����������

�������	���

������	��������	��� �%$"A%$A;%���� %%$D;�$D%D����

�
� -	�����������	����
	����	���������
�� """$0@A���������� "A;$"%�����������

�  �� �	����	������
���������	� �$#;D$030������ ;;0$"03����������

�
	����������	��� �"$A@;$@@D���� %"$AD@$;3"����

6������������
&��
�����
����� A30$D�A���������� A#3$A�A����������

2�	��
��	�
�

2�	���'��	���	��������	�������	� %D$30%������������ "@$;@0������������

B��	���	�� "$3"�$"D3������ 3$3#"$A"0������

>����	���	����������	� ;0$;03������������ �D@3$3#;���������

�
	�����	��
��	�
� "$;�0$3A#?���� "$;A;$0#"?����

1
'������	�����	�'�	���

13



�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%%�

�

�

���+�#
 �
���
��# � ��


�

���� �����	��
�� 	���� �������
����	�
��� �
�� 	��� �������� ��&�
��� ���� ���
�	��� ��� 	��� ��������� �� ����������� 
��

�� ���3(�������%�	�8���	������
���	�
����
��	���	�	����	$��
�����
���	����������$������������ ���	������� �	���

�
��
����������
���	
	�����'�������
��	�������(�

�

��)!�
,


�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

D

%#%" %#%%

B�'�����

��
 ������'�����

*����	�� � ���	�������
�	����	�
�� @#$"@3$�@3?����� @A$;"A$#3"?�������

1���������'�����

*	���� ���������'����� @@$;0%���������������� �;D$��@�����������������

�
	�����'����� @#$3"#$A;@�������� @A$3AD$0%A���������

�7������

:��	���	�
�-����	�� "$0;%$%�"���������� "$%33$DD������������

�������	��	�
� �"$""A���������������� �"$;AD�����������������

����	����'���� %#$3%A���������������� �0$�#@�����������������

:�	����	�
���
� -	�����������	��� A$%A"������������������ A$%A"��������������������

*	����
�	 
 ;@$30"$0"0�������� @3$#�#$#%;���������

�
	����7������ @#$3DA$�D0�������� @A$%03$D@"���������

���� �������	��
��	�
� �;@$3""��������������� �D3$#@3���������������

1
'������	�����	�'�	���

14



�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%"�

�

�

������"����!
��� � � �#


�

������
�	������	�������������������������
���� ���3$�	����
�	�
������
��
��� 
'������	�����	�'�	����	���������&���

?@#$3DA$�D0������
�	�
��	�������	�'�	����&�����������
	���� 
'������	������
� ���+�	�
���&�
��������+������	����

��
 �����&�	�� ���	�������
�	����	�
���
��?@#$"@3$�@3(�E��������
��	����������� ��������������	��
�	�
��
��
���

 
'������	�����	�'�	����&�	��
	������'�����$���8����	����	����� ���������	�	�����	�(�

�

:��������"$�&����'��������	���	����
�	�������	��
�	�
�������
��	������������� ��	�����	�
���F����	���	�
�-����	���

��	�'�	���$��������	��	�
�$�����	����'����$���	����	�
���
� -	�����������	��������
	����
�	 
(���
'���� �	����

���
���	�
�����
&��
�����	�+����	
��
�������	����
�	�
�����������	�
������
������
��	
�	���������	��	���������'��

������
'��������	��	�����	�
�(�

�

��)!�
-


�

�
�

:��	���	�
��-����	����
�	����������	���������	���$�4��	���=���	����������	�$�EB����

�����	
�$����������$�����

EB���	�������'�������
�	���	���&�	��1
��	��>��
��������	������

��6��	���	�(���@(;C����������&�����������	
�

�����������$������	�� ��������	���������������������
�	�((�������&�����
���2
�����������

����������	�(�*	���-
�	 
�

�7�������������������������	
��<�����#������	��
� �����
��	�	
�	����������'������	
����	���	��������
�������&�	��

	�����������
��������(��������������%#%%-%#%"�������������
	����
�	 
�����
�������	
�%#%�-%%��������	
��7�

����	��
� ���*/:6������� ����%#%�-%%�	��	������
	��
�	��������%#%%-%#%"(�=��	
����������
� 
�� �
	���-
�	 
�

�7���������
��<����#����������������	��
���������������	�������
���� �
������
 ����������

��$��
&�:���������

�������
��	�
��
������������	�������	���
�	������
	�����������������	�
���
�	�����8�	
�	������	���	�(��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

0

%#%" %#%% %#%" %#%%

:��	���	�
�-����	�� "$0;%$%�"������ "$%33$DD������� ���#$%�"��������� ;0A$�"0����������

�������	��	�
� �"$""A������������ �"$;AD������������ �%;�������������������� �%@@�����������������

����	����'���� %#$3%A������������ �0$�#@������������ ��$3�@�������������� �0;��������������������

:�	����	�
���
� -	�����������	��� A$%A"�������������� A$%A"�������������� �A$%A"�������������� �A$%A"��������������

*	����
�	 
 ;@$30"$0"0���� @3$#�#$#%;���� �3$#0D�������������� �"3A$"%;���������

�
	����7������ @#$3DA$�D0?� @A$%03$D@"?� ��%"$#%;�?������ %3%$�D#?�������

�
	����
�	�
����'���� 2�	��
�	�
����'����

15



�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%"�

�

���
��	��%�
���&�


�

���	���������
����	���	��������$�
��� 
'������	�����������
�	������������������
��?"$A""$"A%$�&�����������

���������
��?A;"$;�%$�
���@(A0C���
�����	�����(��������3��

�

��)!�
.


�

�
�




������!
����
/��+����(
� +�! +��#


�

*'��� 	��� �
����� 
�� 	��� ����$� 	��� ����� ��'����� �	�� ��� �	� ��� �	� �		���	�� 	
� �����&�	�� ���7���	��� ���� ��� ���

��'�����������7�����	����(� ���� ������ ��������	� 	
� 	������ �	�&��� ��
�	���
��4�����@$�%#%"(� ������������

��
&�� � 	��� �������
�� ����� ���� ������ ��� �	���
��	�� �
�������&�	�� ��
��	�� ��	����������� ���� �����'��� ���

��
'��������
�������������
�	�
���� ��"D(��

�

B�'�������'���
��������	
�	���%#%%-%#%"���� �	�&������������������	
���)��	���	���
����	�����	�� ��
����	���

����	�������� ����%#%%-%"�	
������'�� �4��	���=���	��<����� ����%#%"$��������� ������ ����8������4��	���=���	��

��������	��
��	�
�$����	
��� ��
����	��2���
�	��

�(�������&������
��������	�
����;(;C������������������ 
	��	���

��	�����
�	������ �	(�����	�
���������
'������������	��7�����	��
� ���������
��<����������������B�����������

��	(�� ����
����� ������
���	�
���&�	��	�����'��������������������
������	������
��	�
��
��������������%#%�-%#%%�

����� ��������������	
�����	��	����
��
&�� ����
��	�,�

�

6��	���	��� ������
��	�
�$�

����-E������
�����
����6�'��
����	�������:�������� �

4�������:��������
'���

�
&�:����������9������	������
'���

���������
�����
��	�������� ���������������	
����	���	��

��	����	�'��6����	��B��
��	�
�������
'�����7� ���	��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�#�

1
'������	���<��� !����"#$�%#%% B�'����� �7�����	���� !����"#$�%#%"

1������ 3$3DA$%33?���� D$%A0$#@0?� 0$#"%$;D�?�������� "$A""$A"%?����

������������	�
������-���
� � ;%$�33$3�;� ;%$�33$3�;��������

������
	�� 3$3DA$%33������ @#$3%"$3D3� @�$�A@$00@�������� "$A""$A"%?����

���������������	�'�	�

16



�

�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%%�

�

�����	
�����0
�����1��1���
	����&
������
��&
&�/�
�&������������





�2 ��!
�##��#
���
� +��1��1�#�
	��#��
�##��#


�

�	�!����"#$�%#%"$�	������������?3#;$0D%";"$@�;$���������������	�$������������ ����������
'����	�(������

��
��	���������	������	����������
��?;%$"@@$�
����(3C$�����
�������	
����	�����5�����	�	����������$�����	
�	���

��������	�
��������
�	�+�	�
���������;�(�

�

��)!�
3


�

�
E����
'�����
�����	���������
���	�
���� ����� �����	�������	�������� �	-	
-���������������	�����2
	��3�
��	���

�����������	�	����	�(�

�

	��+1���"
	 �) ! � �#
�����
����
���# ��#


�

�	�	�������
��	��������$�	������������?"""$0@A�����
� -	�����������	����
�	�	����� �'������?"A;$"%�����	���������

���	�	��$������������
��?3�$";3$�
����(#C(���
����
� -	�����������	�����
����	���
�,�

�

��)!�
4


�

�
E����
'�����
�����	���������
���	�
���� ����� ��
� -	�����������	�������2
	��A�
��	��������������	�	����	�(�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��

%#%" %#%%

������� ����������
'����	� "3$%0%?���������� "0$;@0?����������

�����������	� "�0$"%"���������� "@@$3�"����������

�
	�� ";"$@�;���������� 3#;$0D%����������

1
'������	�����	�'�	���

%#%" %#%%

�
� -������������	���

������ "%;$�%"?������� "@0$3�"?�������

�
������	����������� D$D33�������������� ;$0#D��������������

�
	�� """$0@A���������� "A;$"%�����������

1
'������	�����	�'�	���

17



�

�

��	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
��������������
4��� ����	5��6�������
���������������

!����"#$�%#%"�

�

�

�++��+���
���
���# ��
	 �) ! �(
5��	6


�

�	�����-���$�	����������������  �� �	����	������
���������	��
��?�$#;D$030$�'������?;;0$"03����	�����$�������������


��?300$;;;�
��D0("C(�E����
'�����
�����	���������
���	�
���� ����� ������
���������	�����2
	��0�
��	�������������

�	�	����	�(�

�

�

������
������
��&
��7�
8���%�
/�&����
��&
�����


�

:���
�������� �	����������� �	��
��	���%#%"-%#%3������������$�	����
������������ ����	������	����
��
&�� �

���	����,�����8���������	�
������
�����'������
�����	����,�

�

�
�	�
�� ��'�� ���)��	���	� ��*����
��D(�"C�&����������� 	
���@#%�B�'����� ��� 	���%#%"-%#%3���
�	������ �	(�

<����������
���&�������	���������	���	
� ���	��&�����	��	����������'����
��'���
�����
 ����$��(�($��	������'��
����	�

���� �
&� ���������� ���� ��� ��
)��	��� 	
� ������� ���	(� ������ &��� �
� �*��� �������� 	
� �������(� 	��-���-�
�����

����������&�����������(�������	��&������	���	���������
��������	��������	
��������	�(�B����	�
�������7��������
��


��-	���������� (�

�

�

��������
���
��	��%�
�������	
����������


�

������������������
�	�������� ����	
���
'����
�����	�+���$�	�7������$��	����	�$�������'��	
������������	
���&�	����

 �������
'��'��&�
��	�����������������������	
���
&�	�������������
��	�����	���
��	����
�����	������'��(�:���
��

��'��9���	�
�����
�	�	�������
�	�
���������������	�
�����������������
���	�
�$��
�	��	�	���������7���	�'��

6����	
�$�6�(�B����'���$��	���	�����������
��	��������������	�
���
�������������$�;"D;�=
����	����'����$�

��� (�;(��
7��#A$���	���������$������
����$�0"���$�
���-������	�(� �

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� �

�%�

18



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2023

ASSETS

Cash in county treasury $ 4,046,038

Receivables 12,060,446

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 34,292

Right-to-use leased assets, net of accumulated amortization 319,323

Total assets 16,460,099

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,574,856

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 12,372,752

Long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities other than

pensions due within one year 45,209

Long-term liabilities other than  

pensions due in more than one year 288,758

Aggregate net pension liability 1,058,949

Total liabilities 13,765,668

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 749,817

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 28,492

Restricted for

Educational programs 3,431,384

Unrestricted 59,594

Total net position $ 3,519,470

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13

Activities

Governmental

19



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Governmental activities

Instruction-related activities

Supervision of instruction $ 3,952,213 $ 3,842,000 $ (110,213)

All other administration 13,337 13,312 (25)

Plant services 20,427 19,011 (1,416)

Interest on long-term liabilities 7,273 (7,273)

Other outgo 56,493,940 56,489,841 (4,099)

Total governmental activities $ 60,487,190 $ 60,364,164    (123,026)

General Revenues:

Use of money and property 66,593

Total general revenues 66,593

Change in net position (56,433)

Net position, beginning of fiscal year 3,575,903

Net position, end of fiscal year $ 3,519,470

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14

Changes in 

Revenues Net (Expense)

Operating Revenue and

Program

Expenses and Grants Net Position

Contributions

20



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

GOVERNMENTAL FUND

BALANCE SHEET 

June 30, 2023

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 16,106,484        

Total assets $ 16,106,484

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 12,372,752        

Total liabilities 12,372,752

Fund Balance:

Unassigned 3,733,732

Total fund balance 3,733,732

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 16,106,484

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Fund

General

15

21



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL 

FUND BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2023

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Fund $ 3,733,732

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the

Statement of Net Position are Different Because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in

governmental funds.

The cost of capital asset is 131,895$             

Accumulated depreciation is (97,603)

Net capital assets 34,292

Right-to-use leased assets used in governmental activities are

not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in

governmental funds

The cost of right-to-use leased assets is 413,503

Accumulated amortization is (94,180)

Net right-to-use leased assets 319,323

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net

position in a future period and are reported in the

governmental funds. Deferred outflows of resources amounted

to and related to

Aggregate net pension liability 1,574,856

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,574,856

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net

position that applies to a future period and are not reported in the

governmental funds. Deferred inflows of resources amount to

and related to

Aggregate net pension liability (749,817)

Total deferred inflows of resources (749,817)

Aggregate net pension liability is not due and payable in the current

period, and is not reported as a liability in the funds (1,058,949)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of

Leases (325,123)

Compensated absences (vacations) (8,844)

(333,967)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 3,519,470

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

16

22



23



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total net changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds $ (753,512)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of

Activities are Different Because

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in

governmental funds as expenditures; however, for governmental

activities, those costs are shown in the Statement of Net Position and

allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation

and amortization expenses in the Statement of Activities. This is

the amount by which depreciation and amortization expense

exceeds capital outlay in the period. (52,367)

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses, such as

compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts

earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,

expenditures for these item are measured by the amount of

financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid).

This amount is the difference between vacation earned and used (2,936)

In the governmental funds, pension costs are based on employer

contributions made to pension plans during the year. However,

in the Statement of Activities, pension expense is the net effect of

all changes in the deferred outflows, deferred inflows and

aggregate net pension liability during the year 708,092

Payment of principal on lease liabilities is an expenditure in

the governmental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilities in the

Statement of Net Position and does not affect the Statement

of Activities 44,290

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities $ (56,433)

The  notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF

18

24



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

19 

  
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
           

The Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) was organized in 1983 as a Joint Powers Agreement 
(JPA). The following Santa Barbara County LEAs are members in 2022-2023: 
 

 
 
The purpose of the SELPA is to maintain programs for the education of individuals with special needs in the most cost-
effective manner. This plan is carried out through the coordination of special education services within the members’ 
geographic boundary. 
 
The SELPA is governed by the JPA Board, which consists of representatives from members’ administration. The SELPA 
maintains an administrative paid staff for managerial control and a classified staff to provide services to member SELPAs. 
The certificated staff are employees of a member organization or employees of the SELPA, depending on their duties. 

 
 
B. Basis of Presentation 
                     

Government-wide Financial Statements: 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report 
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the SELPA.   
 
The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  Government-wide 
statements differ from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared.  Governmental fund 
financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation, with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between 
the government-wide statements and the statements for the governmental funds. 
 
The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function or program of the SELPA’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated 
with a service, program, or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.  The SELPA does not 
allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.  Program revenues include charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as well as grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are 
presented as general revenues of the SELPA, with certain exceptions.  The comparison of direct expenses with program 
revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of 
the SELPA. 
 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Fund financial statements report detailed information about the SELPA.  The focus of governmental fund financial 
statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type.  Each major governmental fund is presented in a separate 
column, and all nonmajor funds are aggregated into one column.   
 
The accounting and financial treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.  All governmental funds 
are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, only current 
assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and  

Adelante Charter School Los Olivos School District

Ballard School District Manzanita Public Charter School

Blockman Union School District Montecito Union School District

Buellton Union School District Orcutt Union School District

Carpinteria Unified School District Santa Barbara Charter School

Cold Spring School District Santa Barbara County Education Office

College School District Santa Barbara Unified School District

Cuyama Joint Unified School District Santa Maria Joint Union High School District

Family Partnership Charter School Santa Maria-Bonita School District

Goleta Union School District Santa Ynez Valley Union High School District

Guadalupe Union School District Solvang School District

Hope School District Vista Del Mar Union School District

Lompoc Unified School District

25



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

20 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
B. Basis of Presentation (continued) 

 
Changes in Fund Balances for these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases 
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 
     

C. Basis of Accounting 
           

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial 
statements.  Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Governmental 
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.   

 
Revenue – exchange and non-exchange transactions: 
 
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded 
under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.  On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal 
year in which the resources are measurable and become available.  “Available” means the resources will be collected within 
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal 
year.  For the SELPA, “available” means collectible within the current period or within one year after fiscal year end. 
 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the SELPA receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property 
taxes, grants, and entitlements.  Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for 
which the taxes are levied.  Revenue from grants and entitlements is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the fiscal year when 
the resources are to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the SELPA must 
provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided 
to the SELPA on a reimbursement basis.  Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must 
also be available before it can be recognized.  
 
Unearned revenue: 
 

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.  Grants and 
entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenue.  On the governmental fund 
financial statements, receivables associated with non-exchange transactions that will not be collected within the availability 
period have also been recorded as unearned revenue. 
 
Pensions: 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the SELPA’s California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) and California State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (CalSTRS) (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS and CalSTRS.  For 
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported as fair value. 
 
Expenses/expenditures: 
 

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified accrual basis 
of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, 
as under the accrual basis of accounting.  However, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditure related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when 
payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the SELPA’s policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 

D. Fund Accounting 
           

The accounts of the SELPA are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting 
entity.  The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.  The SELPA’s resources are allocated to 
and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and  

26



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

21 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
D. Fund Accounting (continued) 

 
the means by which spending activities are controlled.  The SELPA’s accounts are organized into major and nonmajor funds 
as follows: 

 
Major Governmental Funds: 

 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the SELPA.  It is used to account for all financial resources except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 

The Special Education Pass-Through Fund is used by the Administrative Unit of a multi-district Special Education Local 
Plan Area (SELPA) to account for Special Education revenue passed through to other member districts. 

 
 
E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America for all governmental funds.  By State law, the SELPA's governing board must adopt a final budget no later than 
July 1.  A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption.  The SELPA's governing board satisfied 
these requirements. 

           
These budgets are revised by the SELPA's governing board during the fiscal year to give consideration to unanticipated 
income and expenditures.   

          
Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the fiscal year for all budgeted funds.  
The SELPA employs budget control by minor object and by individual appropriation accounts.  Expenditures cannot legally 
exceed appropriations by major object account. 

 
F. Encumbrances 
           

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which 
commitments have been made.  Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when 
they are written.  Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid.  All encumbrances are liquidated at June 
30. 

 
G. Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, as prescribed by the GASB and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
H.       Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity 
 

1.        Deposits and Investments 
 
Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository 
Insurance Corporation.  All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized. 

             
In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the SELPA maintains substantially all of its cash in the Santa 
Barbara County Treasury.  The County pools these funds with those of other SELPA in the County and invests the 
cash. These pooled funds are carried at fair value.  Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds.  
Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool. 

 
The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53648 
et. seq..  The funds maintained by the County are either secured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation 
or are collateralized. 
 
Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with the Santa Barbara County Treasury was 
not available. 
 

27



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

22 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
H.       Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity (continued) 

 
2. Receivables and Payables 

 
Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of 
the fiscal year are referred to as interfund receivables/payables. 

 
3. Prepaid Items 

 
 

The SELPA has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when 
purchased or during the benefiting period.  The SELPA has chosen to report the expenditure in the period benefited.  

 
4.         Capital Assets 

 
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined by 
its measurement focus. Capital assets are long�lived assets of the SELPA. The SELPA maintains a 
capitalization threshold of $5,000. The SELPA does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are 
capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend an asset's life are not capitalized but are expensed as incurred. 

 
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized in the 
government�wide statement of net position. The valuation basis for general capital assets are historical cost, 
or where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost. Donated capital 
assets are capitalized at acquisition value on the date donated, if applicable. 

 
Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by the straight�line method. Estimated useful lives 
of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows: buildings, 20 to 50 years; 
improvements/infrastructure, 5 to 50 years; equipment, 2 to 15 years. 

 
 The SELPA records impairments of capital assets when it becomes probable that the carrying value of the 
assets will not be fully recovered over their estimated useful life. Impairments are recorded to reduce the 
carrying value of the assets to their net realizable value based on facts and circumstances in existence at the 
time of the determination. No impairments were recorded during the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 
 The SELPA records the value of intangible right�to�use assets based on the underlying leased asset in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The right�to�use intangible asset is amortized each year for 
the term of the contract. 
 

5. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources            
 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position,” and GASB Statement No. 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,” 
the SELPA recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 
 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources.  A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that 
is applicable to a future reporting period.  The SELPA has two items which qualify for reporting in this category; 
refer to Notes 5 and Note 9 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows of resources the SELPA has recognized. 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources.  A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the SELPA that is 
applicable to a future reporting period.  The SELPA has two items which qualify for reporting in this category; refer 
to Note 5 and Note 9 for a detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources the SELPA has recognized. 
 

6. Compensated Absences             
 

All vacation pay plus related payroll taxes are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements.  
A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a 
result of employee resignations and retirements. 
 

28



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

23 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
H.       Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity (Continued) 

 
7. Long-Term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.   

 
8. Fund Balances 
 

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 
 

Non-spendable Fund Balance – represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable 
form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as notes receivable or 
principal of a permanent fund). 

 
Restricted Fund Balance – represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 

 
Committed Fund Balance – represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a formal 
action by the SELPA’s governing board.  Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action.  Committed fund balance 
amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the governing board.  Commitments are 
typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget.  Committed fund balance amounts differ from 
restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, 
or enabling legislation. 

 
Assigned Fund Balance – represents amounts which the SELPA intends to use for a specific purpose, but that do 
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.  Intent may be stipulated by the governing board 
or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority.  Specific amounts that are not 
restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service, or permanent fund are assigned for 
purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund’s primary purpose.  Assignments within the 
general fund convey that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the 
general purpose of the SELPA. 

 
Unassigned Fund Balance – represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any 
purpose.  Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance.  Other governmental funds might 
report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts 
had been restricted, committed or assigned. 

 
When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, 
the SELPA considers restricted funds to have been spent first.  When an expenditure is incurred for which 
committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the SELPA considers amounts to have  
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds. 
 

9. Minimum Fund Balance Policy 
 
The SELPA is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce 
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures.  The SELPA’s Minimum Fund 
Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, equal to no less 
than $643,478 within the General Fund. 

 
10. Leases 
 

The SELPA recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the government-
wide financial statements. The SELPA measures the lease liability at the present value of payments expected to 
be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease 
payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, plus certain initial 
direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 
 
 

29



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

24 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
I.       Future Accounting Pronouncements 
 
  
                GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements: 
  
  Statement No. 99      "Omnibus 2022"   The provisions of this statement are effective in April 2022 

except for the provisions related to leases, PPPs, SBITAs, 
financial guarantees and derivative instruments. The 
provisions related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. The 
provisions related to financial guarantees and derivative 
instruments are effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2023. 

 

  Statement No. 100    "Accounting Changes and Error  The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal years 

          Corrections - an amendment of GASB years beginning after June 15, 2023. 
          Statement No. 62" 
 

  Statement No. 101     "Compensated Absences"  The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal years 

               beginning after December 15, 2023. 
 
NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The SELPA’s cash and investments at June 30, 2023, consisted of the following: 
   

     
Cash and investments are presented on the accompanying basic financial statements, as follows: 
 

    
 
The SELPA categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  These principles 
recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs 
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  The SELPA did not have investments that 
were measured under Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3.   
 
Cash in County Treasury 
 
In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the SELPA maintains substantially all of its cash in the Santa Barbara County 
Treasury as part of the common investment pool ($4,046,038 as of June 30, 2023). The fair value of this pool as of that date, as 
provided by the plan sponsor, was $4,046,038.  The SELPA is considered to be an involuntary participant in the external pool.  Interest 
is deposited in the participating funds. The County is restricted by Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to Section 53601, to 
invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, State registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s investment pool, 
bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. 
 
Investments Authorized by the SELPA’s Investment Policy 
 
The SELPA’s investment policy only authorizes investment in the local government investment pool administered by the County of 
Santa Barbara.  The SELPA’s investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the SELPA’s exposure to 
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  Generally, the 
longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways 
that the SELPA manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments  

Cash and investments with the County Treasurer 4,046,038$       

Total cash in investments 4,046,038$       

Cash in county treasury, statement of net position 4,046,038$       

Total cash in investments 4,046,038$       

30



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

25 

 
NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (continued) 
 
and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as 
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the SELPA’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 
following table that shows the distribution of the SELPA’s investments by maturity: 

  
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  This is 
measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by the California Government Code and the SELPA’s investment policy, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for 
each investment type. 
 

 
 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the SELPA contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code.  There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total SELPA 
investments. 
 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not 
be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The 
California Government Code and the SELPA’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits:  The California Government Code 
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided 
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The fair value of the 
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California 
law also allows financial institutions to secure the SELPA’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 
150% of the secured public deposits. 
 
None of the SELPA’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in uncollateralized 
accounts. 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party.  The California Government Code and the SELPA’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that 
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments.  With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies 
only to direct investments in marketable securities.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment 
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as Santa Barbara County Investment Pool). 

Carrying 12 Months 13-24 25-60 More than

Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months 60 Months

Santa Barbara County

Investment Pool 4,046,038$   4,046,038$   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total 4,046,038$   4,046,038$   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Minimum Exempt

Carrying Legal From

Investment Type Amount Rating Disclosure AAA Aa Not Rated

Santa Barbara County

Investment Pool 4,046,038$   N/A -$                    -$                    -$                    4,046,038$   

Total 4,046,038$   -$                    -$                    -$                    4,046,038$   

Rating as of Fiscal Year End

31



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

26 

 
NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES             
         
Receivables at June 30, 2023, consist of the following:  
     

 
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
 
Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is shown below: 
 

 
NOTE 5 - DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
At June 30, 2023, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, reported in the Statement of Net Position, consisted of the following: 
 

 

Special Education

General Pass-Through

Fund Fund

Federal Government:

Federal programs 542,801$     10,917,429$         

Local Sources:

Interest 23,788 88

Miscellaneous 460,754 115,586

1,027,343$ 11,033,103$         

Balance Balance

July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions Transfers June, 30, 2023

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 131,895$       -$                     -$                -$                131,895$         

Total capital assets, being depreciated 131,895 131,895

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 92,326 5,277 97,603

Total accumulated depreciation 39,569 5,277 97,603

Total capital assets, being depreciated 39,569$          (5,277)$           -$                -$                34,292$           

Governmental Activities:

Unallocated 5,277$            

Total depreciation expense 5,277$            

Government-wide Deferred Outflows

Pensions 1,574,856$   

Total Government-wide Deferred Outflows 1,574,856$   

Government-wide Deferred Inflows

Pensions 749,817$      

Total Government-wide Deferred Inflows 749,817$      

32



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

27 

 
NOTE 6 – FUND BALANCE 
 

 
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES- SCHEDULE OF CHANGES 
 
A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is shown below: 
 

 
 
NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES OTHER THAN PENSIONS 

 
Leases 
 
The SELPA has entered into agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. The SELPA’s liability on lease agreements is 
summarized below: 

 
SELPA Office Lease 

 
The SELPA entered an agreement to lease office space for 36 months, beginning June 1, 2021. The initial lease term is through May 
31, 2024, and has two three-year renewal options that are deemed reasonably certain to be exercised. Under the terms of the lease, 
the SELPA pays a monthly base fee of $4,132.50, increasing 3.00% annually beginning in July 2022. At June 30, 2023, the SELPA 
has recognized a right-to-use asset of $405,359 and a lease liability of $405,359 related to this agreement. During the fiscal year, 
the SELPA recorded $45,461 in amortization expense and $7,012 in interest expense for the right-to-use the office space. The 
SELPA used a discount rate of 2.00%, based on estimates for similar property financing rates in place at the initiation of the lease. 
 
Copier Lease 

 
The SELPA entered an agreement to lease a copier for 60 months, beginning June 30, 2021. Under the terms of the lease, the 
SELPA makes monthly payments of $147.72, which amounts to total principal and interest costs of $8,863. At June 30, 2023, the 
SELPA has recognized a right-to-use asset of $8,144 and a lease liability of $6,607 related to this agreement. During the fiscal year, 
the SELPA recorded $1,129 in amortization expense and $236 in interest expense for the right-to-use the copier. The SELPA used 
a discount rate of 3.5%, based on estimates for similar equipment financing rates in place at the initiation of the lease. 
 
The remaining principal and interest payment requirements for the lease obligation debt as of June 30, 2023 are as follows on the 
next page: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General

Fund

Restricted

Legally restricted programs 3,431,384$    

Unassigned 302,348

Total 3,733,732$    

Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 One Year

Compensated absences payable 5,908$            7,376$         4,440$         8,844$            -$                  

Lease payable 369,413 44,290 325,123 45,209

Net pension liability 559,394 499,555 1,058,949

934,715$       506,931$     48,730$       1,392,916$    45,209$       

33



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

28 

 
NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES OTHER THAN PENSIONS (continued) 

 

 
 

 
 
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS 
 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) 
 
A.  General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Descriptions – All qualified California full-time and part-time public school teachers from pre-kindergarten through community 
college and certain other employees of the public school system are eligible to participate in the CalSTRS Pension Plans, multiple-
employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plans administered by the California State Teacher’s Retirement System (CalSTRS).  Benefit 
provisions under the Plans are established by the Teachers’ Retirement Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq), as 
enacted and amended by the California Legislature.  The benefit terms of the plans may be amended through legislation CalSTRS 
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and  
membership information that can be found on the CalSTRS’ website. 
 
Benefits Provided – The CALSTRS’ Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas: 
 
CalSTRS 2% at 60:  Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform services that could be creditable to CalSTRS. 
 
CalSTRS 2% at 62:  Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform services that could be creditable to CalSTRS. 
 
The Defined Benefit Program provides retirement benefits based on members’ final compensation, age and years of service credit. 
In addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon disability and or survivors/beneficiaries upon death of eligible 
members.   
 
After earning five years of credited service, members become 100 percent vested in retirement benefits. 
 
After five years of credited service, a member (prior to age 60 if under Coverage A, no age limit if under Coverage B, as defined in 
Education Code Sections 24001 and 24101, respectively) is eligible for disability benefits of up to 50.0 percent of final compensation 
plus 10.0 percent of final compensation for each eligible child, up to a maximum addition of 40.0 percent. The member must have a 
disability that will exceed a period of 12 or more months to qualify for benefit. 
 
Any compensation for service in excess of one year in a school year due to overtime or working additional assignments is credited 
to the Defined Benefit Supplement Program so long as it is under the creditable compensation limit.  Other compensation, such as 
allowances, bonuses, cash in-lieu of fringe benefits, limited–period compensation or compensation determined to have been paid to 
enhance a benefit, are not creditable to any CalSTRS benefit program. 
 
The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as shown on the following page: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2024 45,209$       6,154$       51,363$       

2025 46,146         5,217         51,363         

2026 47,103         4,259         51,362         

2027 46,279         3,311         49,590         

2028 45,455         2,373         47,828         

2029-2030 94,931         1,878         96,809         

Total 325,123 23,192 348,315

34



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

29 

 
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS 

 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued) 
 
A.  General Information about the Pension Plan (continued) 
 

  
 
Specific details for the retirement, disability or death benefit calculations for each of the pension plans are available in the 
CalSTRS’ Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The CalSTRS’ ACFR is available online at  
https://www.calstrs.com/annual-comprehensive-financial-report. 
 
Contributions - Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and Governor and 
detailed in the Teachers' Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as a level percentage of payroll using the entry age 
normal actuarial cost method. 
 
On-Behalf Payments – The SELPA was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12 
education.  These payments consist of state general fund contributions to CalSTRS. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense were as follows: 
 
Contribution – employer $ 72,070 
Contribution – state $ 34,107 

 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

 
At June 30, 2023, the SELPA reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected a reduction for 
State pension support provided to the SELPA.  The amount recognized by the SELPA as its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the SELPA were as follows: 
 

   
The SELPA’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability is 
measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The SELPA's proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on a projection of the SELPA’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the SELPA’s proportion was .0006%, 
which was the same as its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.    
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the SELPA recognized pension expense of $122,732. At June 30, 2023, the SELPA 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the sources shown on the next 
page: 

 

 

 

Prior to On or after

Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.0% @ 60 2.0% @ 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life

Retirement age 60 62

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.4% 2% to 2.4%

Required employee contribution rates 10.250% 10.205%

Required employer contribution rates 16.920% 16.920%

Required state contribution rates 10.828% 10.828%

Organization's proportionate share of the net pension liability 424,549$          

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

       associated with the Organization 256,261

Total 680,810$          

35



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

30 

 
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS 

 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued) 
 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
 

 
$72,070 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized 
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows on the next page: 
 

 

 

 

Actuarial Assumptions -The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuations were determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 
 

  
 
CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members.  In January 31, 2020, the CalSTRS’ 
retirement board changed the mortality assumptions based on the July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 Experience Analysis.  The 
projection scale was set to 110% of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table, issued 
by the Society of Actuaries.  For further details, see CalSTRS’ July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 Experience Analysis on the 
CalSTRS website. 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 348$                  31,826$            

Changes of assumptions 21,039

Net difference between projected and actual earning 

on pension plan investments 20,773

Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,144,940 635,777

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 72,070

Total 1,238,397$       688,376$          

Amount

108,314$          

69,568               

14,271               

249,092            

45,406               

(8,700)                

2028

Thereafter

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30

2024

2025

2026

2027

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Measurement Date June 30, 2022

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Discount Rate 7.10%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth 3.50%

Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB

Not applicable for DBS/CBB

36



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

31 

 
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS 

 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued) 

 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS 
general  investment consultant (Pension Consulting Alliance - PCA) as an input to the process. Based on the model from CalSTRS 
consulting actuary’s (Milliman) investment practice, a best estimate range was determined by assuming the portfolio is re-balanced 
annually and that annual returns are normally distributed and independent from year to year to develop expected percentiles for the 
long-term distribution of annualized returns. The assumed asset allocation by PCA is based on board policy for target asset allocation 
in effect on January 31, 2020, the date the current experience study was approved by the board. Best estimates of 10-year geometric 
real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment 
rate of return are summarized in the following table: 

  
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at statutory contribution 
rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the  long-
term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense 
occur mid-year. Based on those assumptions, the CalSTRS fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount    Rate - The following 
presents the SELPA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the SELPA’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 
1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 

 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position -  Detailed information about pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 

separately-issued CalSTRS’ financial reports. 
 
C.  Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2023, the SELPA had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2023. 

Long-Term*

Assumed Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Global Equity 42 % 4.80 %

Private Equity 13 % 6.30 %

Real Estate 15 % 3.60 %

Inflation Sensitive 6 % 3.30 %

Fixed Income 12 % 1.30 %

Cash/Liquidity 2 % (0.40) %

Absolute Return 10 % 1.80 %

100 %

*10 year geometric average

1% Decrease 6.10%

Net Pension Liability 721,042$          

Current Discount Rate 7.10%

Net Pension Liability 424,549$          

1% Increase 8.10%

Net Pension Liability 178,371$          

37



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

32 

 
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (continued) 

 
California Public Employers’ Retirement System (CalPERS)  
 
A.     General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description  
 
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the SELPA’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, 
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and SELPA resolution. CalPERS issues publicly 
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS’ website. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, 
who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time 
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members 
are eligible for nonduty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, 
the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as 
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.   
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022 (the Measurement Date), are summarized as follows:  
 

  

 
Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public 
employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the 
rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the fiscal year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The SELPA is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Contributions to the pension plan from the SELPA were $113,483 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.  
 
B.    Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2023, the SELPA reported a liability of $634,400 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension 
liability is measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The SELPA's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the SELPA’s long-term share of contributions to the pension 
plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the SELPA’s 
proportion was .01356%, which was a decrease from the proportion of .00008% at June 30, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prior to On or after

Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life

Retirement age 55 62

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.1%-2.5% 1.0%-2.5%

Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 7.00%

Required employer contribution rates 8.63% 7.47%

38



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

33 

 
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (continued) 

 
California Public Employers’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued) 
 
B.    Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the SELPA recognized pension expense of $39,134.  Pension expense represents the 
change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of 
changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2023, the 
SELPA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:  
 

  
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net 
pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 
 

$113,483 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from SELPA contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.  
 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in the pension expense as follows: 
 

       
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 12,740$              8,533$                

Change in assumptions 65,007

Net difference between projected and actual earning on pension

plan investments 116,205

Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 29,024 52,908

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 113,483

Total 336,459$           61,441$              

Amount

36,994$              

34,148                

19,318                

71,075                2027

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30

2024

2025

2026

39



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

34 

 
NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued) 
 

B.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to   Pensions (continued) 
 

 

 

 

 
 
Change in Assumptions 
 
For the measurement date of June 30, 2022, the discount rate was lowered from 7.15% to 6.90% and the inflation rate was decreased 
from 2.50% to 2.30%.  
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return 
expectations. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over 
the next 20 years using a building-block approach. The expected rate of return was then adjusted to account for assumed 
administrative expenses of 10 Basis points. The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Measurement Date June 30, 2022

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Discount Rate 6.90%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.50%

Wage Growth Varies

Post-retirement Benefit Increases Up to 2.00% until purchasing power protection

Allowance flows purchasing power applies,

2.30% thereafter

Strategic Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-101,2

Global Equity - cap weighted 30.0% 4.45%

Global Equity non-cap-weighted 12.0% 3.84%

Private Equity 13.0% 7.28%

Treasury 5.0% 0.27%

Mortgage-backed Securities 5.0% 0.50%

Investment Grade Corporates 10.0% 1.56%

High Yield 5.0% 2.27%

Emerging Market Debt 5.0% 2.48%

Private Debt 5.0% 3.57%

Real Assets 15.0% 3.21%

Leverage -5.0% -0.59%

100.0%

1) An expected inflation of 2.30% was used.

2) Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management Study.

40



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

35 

 
NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued) 
 

B.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to   Pensions (continued) 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
On July 12, 2021, CalPERS reported a preliminary 21.3% net return on investments for fiscal year 2020-21. Based on the thresholds 
specified in CalPERS’ Funding Risk Mitigation policy, the excess return of 14.3% prescribes a reduction in investment volatility that 
corresponds to a reduction in the discount rate used for funding purposes of 0.20%, from 7.00% to 6.80%. Since CalPERS was in 
the final stages of the four-year Asset Liability Management (ALM) cycle, the board elected to defer any changes to the asset 
allocation until the ALM process concluded, and the board could make its final decision on the asset allocation in November 2021.  
 
On November 17, 2021, the board adopted a new strategic asset allocation. The new asset allocation along with the new capital 
market assumptions, economic assumptions and administrative expense assumption support a discount rate of 6.90% (net of 
investment expense but without a reduction for administrative expense) for financial reporting purposes. This includes a reduction in 
the price inflation assumption from 2.50% to 2.30% as recommended in the November 2021 CalPERS’ Experience Study and Review 
of Actuarial Assumptions. This study also recommended modifications to retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates and rates 
of salary increases that were adopted by the board. These new assumptions are reflected in the GASB Statement No. 68 accounting 
valuation reports for the June 30, 2022, measurement date. 

 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount  Rate - The following 
presents the SELPA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the SELPA’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 
1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 

 

  
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position -  Detailed information about pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 

separately issued CalPERS’ financial reports. 

 
C.  Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2023, the SELPA had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2023. 
 
NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
           
State and Federal Allowances, Awards and Grants 
           
 

The SELPA has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.  
Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required 
reimbursements will not be material. 

1% Decrease 5.90%

Net Pension Liability 989,959$           

Current Discount Rate 6.90%

Net Pension Liability 634,400$           

1% Increase 7.90%

Net Pension Liability 341,863$           

41



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 

36 

 
NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 
 
Litigation 
 

According to the SELPA's staff and attorney, no contingent liabilities are outstanding, and no lawsuits are pending of any real financial 
consequence. 
 
NOTE 11 - JOINT VENTURES (Joint Powers Agreements) 
 
The SELPA is a member of the Self-Insured Schools of California II and III (SISC II and SISC III), and the Santa Barbara County 
Schools Self-Insurance Programs for Employees (SBSIPE) public entity risk pools joint powers authority (JPA). The County pays an 
annual premium to each entity for its property and liability, health benefits, and workers’ compensation coverage, respectively. The 
relationships between the SELPA, the pool, and the JPA are such that they are not component units of the SELPA for financial 
reporting purposes. 
 
These entities have budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units and their financial statements are 
not presented in these financial statements; however, fund transactions between the entities and the County are included in these 
statements. Audited financial statements are available from the respective entities. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2023, the SELPA made payments of $5,890 and $16,620, to SISC II and SISC III, respectively, for 
services received. 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 

42



43



44



45



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

Last 10 Years*

As of June 30, 2023

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's CALPERS Pension Plan.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0055% 0.0050% 0.0048% 0.0046% 0.0056%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 634,400$                   270,351$                    524,354$                   467,834$                   541,042$                   

Covered payroll 737,710$                   657,323$                    580,926$                   502,358$                   508,605$                   

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered payroll 86.00% 41.13% 90.26% 93.13% 106.38%

Plan's total pension liability 49,525,975,138$       46,174,942,264$        43,702,930,887$       41,426,453,489$       38,944,855,364$       

Plan's fiduciary net position 37,975,170,163$       40,766,653,876$        32,822,501,335$       31,179,414,067$       29,308,589,559$       

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 76.68% 88.29% 75.10% 75.26% 75.26%

2018 2017 2016 2015

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0043% 0.0040% 0.0034% 0.0045%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 424,375$                   350,020$                    234,160$                   280,313$                   

Covered payroll 453,679$                   121,714$                    236,202$                   406,469$                   

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered payroll 93.54% 287.58% 99.14% 68.96%

Plan's total pension liability 37,161,348,332$       33,358,627,624$        31,771,217,402$       30,829,966,631$       

Plan's fiduciary net position 27,244,095,376$       24,705,532,291$        24,907,305,871$       24,607,502,515$       

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 79.82%

Notes to Schedule

For fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the discount rate was lowered from 7.15% to 6.90% and the inflation rate was decreased from 2.50% to 2.30%.

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

39

46



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (Continued)

Last 10 Years*

As of June 30, 2023

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's CALSTRS Pension Plan.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0006% 0.0006% 0.0008% 0.0008% 0.0008%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 424,549$                   289,043$                    783,963$                   712,528$                   732,045$                   

State's proportionate share of net pension 

   liability associated with the District 252,261 145,435 404,133 388,732 419,130

              Total 676,810$                   434,478$                    1,188,096$                1,101,260$                1,151,175$                

Covered payroll 354,350$                   341,127$                    436,813$                   426,966$                   422,966$                   

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered payroll 119.81% 84.73% 179.47% 166.88% 173.07%

Plan's total pension liability 369,543,996,000$     355,802,665,000$      343,894,793,000$     329,179,420,000$     316,777,450,000$     

Plan's fiduciary net position 300,056,284,995$     310,293,452,995$      246,983,743,995$     238,861,887,995$     224,868,634,995$     

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 81.20% 87.21% 71.82% 72.56% 70.99%

2018 2017 2016 2015

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0005% 0.0005% 0.0008% 0.0010%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 486,568$                   428,415$                    520,264$                   573,925$                   

State's proportionate share of net pension 

   liability associated with the District 287,568 243,113 338,638 402,000

              Total 774,136$                   671,528$                    858,902$                   975,925$                   

Covered payroll 291,264$                   263,243$                    338,638$                   402,000$                   

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered payroll 167.05% 162.75% 153.63% 142.77%

Plan's total pension liability 302,770,146,000$     269,994,690,000$      259,146,248,000$     248,910,844,000$     

Plan's fiduciary net position 210,289,899,995$     189,113,486,995$      191,822,335,995$     190,474,016,000$     

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 69.46% 70.04% 74.02% 76.52%

Notes to Schedule

There were no changes in assumption for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

40

47



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last 10 Years*

As of June 30, 2023

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's CALPERS Pension Plan.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 113,483$        58,508$         57,805$           42,046$          38,350$          

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined

contributions 113,483          58,508           57,805             42,046            38,350            

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   

Covered payroll 825,505$        737,710$       657,323$          580,926$        502,358$        

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 13.747% 7.931% 8.794% 7.238% 7.634%

2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 48,821$          42,056$         37,451$           18,716$          

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined

contributions 48,821            42,056           8,520               18,916            

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                   28,931$           (200)$              

Covered payroll 508,605$        453,679$       121,714$          236,302$        

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 9.60% 9.27% 30.77% 7.92%

Notes to Schedule

For fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the discount rate was lowered from 7.15% to 6.90% and the inflation rate was decreased from 2.50% to 2.30%.

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

41

48



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

Last 10 Years*

As of June 30, 2023

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's CALSTRS Pension Plan.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 72,070$          59,956$         55,092$           74,695$          69,510$          

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined

contributions 72,070            59,956           55,092             74,695            69,510            

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   

Covered payroll 377,329$        354,350$       341,127$          436,813$        426,966$        

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 19.10% 16.92% 16.15% 17.10% 16.28%

2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 61,034$          36,641$         28,246$           30,071$          

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined

contributions 61,034            36,641           28,246             30,071            

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                   -$                     -$                   

Covered payroll 422,966$        291,264$       263,243$          338,637$        

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 14.43% 12.58% 10.73% 8.88%

Notes to Schedule

There were no changes in assumption for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 

 

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

42

49



50



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Pass-Through Amounts

Federal Entity Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Assistance Identifying Federal Through to

Grantor/Program or Cluster Listing Number Expenditures Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Education:

Passed through the California

Special Education (IDEA) Cluster

Basic Local Assistance

Entitlement, Part B, Sec. 611 84.027 13379 13,151,726$     13,151,726$     

IDEA Mental Health Average Daily Attendance

Allocation, Part B, Sec. 611 84.027A 15197 754,119

IDEA Preschool Grants, Part B, Section 619 84.173 13430 10,944 10,944

Alternative Dispute Resolution, Part B, Sec. 611 84.173A 13007 17,777

IDEA Preschool Staff Development,

Part B, Sec. 619 84.173A 13431 4,089

Total Special Education (IDEA) Cluster 13,938,655 13,162,670

Total Federal Financial Assistance 13,938,655$     13,162,670$     

The accompanying note is an integral part of this schedule.

43

51



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

NOTE TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Note 1-Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of SELPA and

is presented on the modified accrual basis if accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in

accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), therefore, some amounts

presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial

statements. SELPA has not elected to use the ten percent de minimus cost rate as covered in Section 200.414

Indirect (F&A) costs of the Uniform Guidance

44

52



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
ORGANIZATION

JUNE 30, 2023

Organization

The Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area was established in 1983. The SELPA has 25 

members and operates in various sites. There were no boundary changes during the year.

Governing Board

Member Office Representing Term Expires

Ms. Anne Hubbard Chair South County Non-Direct Service June 2025

District Representative

Dr. Randall Haggard Vice Chair Santa Ynez Valley Special Education June 2024

Consortium Non-Direct Service District

Representative

Ms. Amy Alzina Clerk North and South County Direct Service June 2025

District Representative

Dr. Holly Edds Member North County Non-Direct Service June 2024

District Representative

Mr. Antonio Garcia Member 9th-12th Grade High School June 2024

Representative

Ms. Hilda Maldonado Member South County Non-Direct Service June 2024

District Representative

Dr. Emilio Handall Member North County Non-Direct Service June 2025

District Representative

Dr. Susan Salcido Member Santa Barbara County Schools

Representative

Administration

Dr. Ray Avila Executive Director

Ms. Jennifer Connolly Coordinator

45

53



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Special 

Education

General Pass-Through

Fund Fund

June 30, 2023, annual financial and budget report fund balances/net position $ 3,733,732 $ 11,033,103

Fair market value adjustment

June 30, 2023, audited financial statements fund balances/net position $ 3,733,732 $ 11,033,103

Long-Term

Liabilities

June 30, 2023, annual financial and budget report long-term liabilities $ 7,376

Understatement of lease liability 332,499

Understatement of net pension liability 1,051,573

June 30, 2023, audited financial statements long-term total liabilities $ 1,391,448

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds and the total

liabilities of the long-term debt as reported on the annual financial and budget report to the audited financial

statements.

46

54



  

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
                                                                                                           

  
 
 
This schedule discloses SELPA’s financial trends by displaying past fiscal years’ data along with current fiscal year budget 
information.  These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate SELPA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 
 
The General Fund balance has decreased by $620,009 over the past two fiscal years.  The fiscal year 2023-24 budget projects a 
decrease of $1,535,171 in fund balance.  For this size, the State recommends available reserve of at least 5% of total general fund 
expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).  
       
The SELPA has incurred an operating surplus in two of the past three fiscal years and anticipates an operating deficit in the 2023-
24 fiscal year. Total long-term liabilities has decreased by $336,849 over the past two fiscal years. 
 
 
Notes: 
1) Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances and reserved for economic uncertainties contained within the 

General Fund. 
2) Budget 2024 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47                                              

2024 (budget)

General Fund (note 2) 2023 2022 2021

Revenues and other financial sources 5,764,769$    8,279,069$ 7,200,595$ 6,764,424$ 

Expenditures 7,299,940 9,032,581 7,067,092 6,416,923

Other uses and transfers

Total outgo 7,299,940 9,032,581 7,067,092 6,416,923

Change in fund balance (1,535,171) (753,512) 133,503 347,501

Ending fund balance 2,198,561$    3,733,732$ 4,487,244$ 4,353,741$ 

Available reserves (note 1) 346,401$       302,348$     143,624$     143,624$     

Reserve for economic uncertainties -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  

Undesignated/unassigned fund balance 346,401$       302,348$     143,624$     143,624$     

Available reserves as a percentage of total outgo 4.7% 3.3% 2.0% 2.2%

Total long-term liabilities 1,347,707$    1,392,916$ 934,715$     1,729,765$ 

55



 

���������	

����������������	��������������������������	��������������� !����������"�����#�$%&
�%�#�

�

'()(*+,�-.++��/��0+)(*��.�,�/���1�����*.��

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 

To the Governing Board 
Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area 
Goleta, California 
           

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
governmental activities and each major fund of the Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area (the SELPA) as of and 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the SELPA’s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the SELPA’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the SELPA’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the SELPA’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 

weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 

deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.  

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SELPA’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 
Santa Maria, California 
December 18, 2023 

48 

56



 

���������	

����������������	���������������������������	��������������� !����������"�����#�$%&
�%�#�

�

'()(*+,�-.++��/��0+)(*��.�,�/���1�����*.��

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE  
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 
To the Governing Board 
Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area 
Goleta, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area’s (SELPA’s) compliance with the types 
of compliance requirements described in the Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of SELPA’s major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. SELPA’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of SELPA’s major federal programs based on our 
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the SELPA’s compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the SELPA’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, SELPA, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Report on Internal Control 
 
Management of SELPA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we 
considered SELPA’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion of the effectiveness of SELPA’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material  
 

49 

57



 

50 

 

weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe that a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 

 

Santa Maria, California 
December 18, 2023 
 

 

58



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                  

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



  

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2023                                                                                                                                                    
 
Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued      Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weaknesses identified?        Yes  X  No 
 Significant deficiencies identified not considered  
   to be material weaknesses?          Yes  X  None reported 
 
 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?       Yes  X  None reported 
 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major program 
     Material weaknesses identified        Yes  X  No 
     Significant deficiencies identified not considered 
        to be material weakness      ________      Yes      __X _      No 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
     for major programs       Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
     in accordance with Uniform Guidance 200.516(a)    ________      Yes        __X _      No 
 
Identification of major programs 
 
Name of Federal Program or Cluster     Federal Financial Assistance Listing Number 
      
Special Education (IDEA) Cluster      84.027, 84.173, 84.173A 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
     And type B programs       $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?     Yes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51 
 

60



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2023 �              

 

 
 

  
Section I – Financial Statement Findings  
 
There were no financial statement findings.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52 

61



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2023 �              

 

 
 

 
Section II – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 
There were no Federal award findings or questioned costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53 

62



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2023 

 

  
Section I – Financial Statement Findings  
 

2022-001 Internal Control Weakness 

 
Criteria: Management is responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls to ensure 
that financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Such internal controls 
should include a review of year-end closing entries to ensure the financial statements are fairly stated. The SELPA 
should ensure that all applicable accounting principles are adhered to when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Condition: During the course of our engagement, we identified material misstatements of balances within the 
SELPA’s 2021-2022 unaudited actuals financial report. Through review of supporting records, we note that the 
General Fund’s Cash in County Treasury balance was overstated by $151,819 and the receivable balance was 
understated by $547,156. In addition, both the receivable and the accounts payable balances in the Special 
Education Pass-Through Fund were understated by $2,882,420. 
 
Questioned Costs: There were no questioned costs associated with the identified condition. 
 
Context: The conditions were identified through review of available SELPA records related to the financial account 
balances in the General Fund and the Special Education Pass-Through Fund and inquiry with SELPA staff. 
 
Effect: Due to the conditions identified, the General Fund’s ending fund balance has been understated by $395,337. 
The ending fund balance in the Special Education Pass-Through Fund is unchanged. However, revenues, outgo, 
receivable, and accounts payable were understated by $2,882,240. 
 
Cause: The SELPA’s internal control and review system was not able to detect the misstatements to the financial 
statements 
 
Recommendation: The SELPA business official agrees with the findings and is responsible for accruing all 
receivables and payables accurately, and year end closing journal entries. The need for a fair market value 
adjustment journal entry to adjust the General Fund’s Cash in County Treasury and accrual for state apportionment 
has been added to the SELPA year-end close checklist so it will not be missed in the future. The SELPA Chief 
Business Official will work with Santa Barbara County Education Office School Business Advisory Services to ensure 
appropriate adjustments are made in the future. 
 
Current Condition: Implemented 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54 

63



SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2023 �              

 
 

 
Section II – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None reported 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55 

64



December 18, 2023 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP 

2400 Professional Parkway Ste. 205 

Santa Maria, CA 93455 

Santa Barbara County 
Special Education Local Plan Area 

A Joint Powers Agency 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit(s) of the financial statements of Santa 
Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area, which comprise the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of June 30, 2023, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, and the 
disclosures (collectively, the "financial statements"), for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether 
the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered to be material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable 
person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An 
omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of 
qualitative factors. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of December 15, 2023 , the following 
representations made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated
February 28, 2023, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary information in
accordance with the applicable criteria.

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and
include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and all
component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial
reporting entity.

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
to prevent and detect fraud.

5385 Hollister Avenue, Bldg. 5 • Santa Barbara, California 93111 • (805) 683-1424 

Mailing Address: 5385 Hollister Avenue, Box 107 • Santa Barbara, California 93111 

fax - (805) 967-1960 • selpa@sbcselpa.org 

REF: VII-A.2 65



5) The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and their related
disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that is reasonable in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

7) Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
financial statements [or in the schedule of findings and questioned costs].

8) The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements as a whole for each opinion unit. A list of the uncorrected misstatements is attached
to the representation letter.

9) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted
for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

10) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Santa Barbara County Special Education Local
Plan Area is contingently liable, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided 

11) We have provided you with:

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records (including information obtained from
outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters [and all audit or
relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources].

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area
from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d) Minutes of the meetings of Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area or summaries
of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

12) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

13) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

14) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Santa Barbara County Special
Education Local Plan Area and involves-

• Management,

• Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

• Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

66



15) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Santa Barbara
County Special Education Local Plan Area's financial statements communicated by employees, former
employees, regulators, or others.

16) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste or abuse, whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.

17) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

18) We have disclosed to you the names of the Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area's
related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions, including any side agreements.

Government-specific 

19) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

20) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to
the objectives of the audit and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

21) We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with respect
to the period under audit.

22) The Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area has no plans or intentions that may
materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or net position.

23) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

24) We have appropriately disclosed all information for conduit debt obligations in accordance with
GASBS No. 91

25) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we believe
have a material effect on the financial statements.

26) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on
noncompliance.

27) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and disclosures. We
acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including that we assume all
management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably within
senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy
and results of the services performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. We have
reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and disclosures.

28) The Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area has satisfactory title to all owned assets,
and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

67



29) The Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area has complied with all aspects of
contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of
noncompliance.

30) The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity interests in
legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly disclose all other
joint ventures and other related organizations.

31) The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by GASBS No. 84 , as amended.

32) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASBS No. 34
as amended.

33) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and R for presentation as major are
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly
important to financial statement users.

34) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and
classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

35) Investments, derivative instrument transactions, and land and other real estate held by endowments
are properly valued.

36) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

37) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement
of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

38) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general
revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund
principal.

39) lnterfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

40) Deposits and investment securities and derivative instrument transactions are properly classified as to
risk and are properly disclosed.

41) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated or amortized.

42) We have appropriately disclosed the Santa Barbara County Special Education Local Plan Area's policy
regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that
net position is properly recognized under the policy.

43) We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more
than one resource classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications for
financial reporting purposes.

44) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and

68



presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any 
significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI. 

Signature: 

R&�(dK!'f! 
Title: Chief Business Official Title: 

Executive Director 

Dec 18, 2023 

69



SBCSELPA Govt Management Rep Ltr FY 

22-23 final1
Final Audit Report

Created: 

By: 

Status: 

Transaction ID: 

2023-12-18 

Rachel Wigle (rwigle@sbcselpa.org) 

Signed 

CBJCHBCAABMw5VhOGm2blSeqFMTpum6LJwqJ5101896 

2023-12-18 

"SBCSELPA Govt Management Rep Ltr FY 22-23 final1" History 

� Document created by Rachel Wigle (rwigle@sbcselpa.org) 
2023-12-18 - 11 :15:15 PM GMT 

121. Document emailed to ravila@sbcselpa.org for signature
2023-12-18 - 11 :16:14 PM GMT

� Email viewed by ravila@sbcselpa.org 

2023-12-18- 11:25:57 PM GMT 

� Signer ravila@sbcselpa.org entered name at signing as Ray Avila 
2023-12-18 - 11 :26:32 PM GMT 

� Document e-signed by Ray Avila (ravila@sbcselpa.org) 
Signature Date: 2023-12-18 - 11 :26:34 PM GMT - Time Source: server 

0 Agreement completed. 
2023-12-18 - 11 :26:34 PM GMT 

s,.,..,,.,, •.. ,,·o ,.·.e 
...... � •• ,,111,•,oti.�, 1 .. ,.�l t'I"'·":'<' 

�,J,LIJ��:.:. ,'!j,U•'• 

I Powered by 
Adobe 
Acrobat Sign 

70



     REF: VIII-A

Date: January 17, 2024 

To: SBCSELPA JPA Board 

From: Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director 

Re: Resignation Notification from Stephanie Kim (formerly Guertin), SBCSELPA WRAP 
Facilitator 

BACKGROUND: 
 Stephanie Kim notified Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director, on December 13, 2023, in

an email that she would be resigning from her position as an SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator.
(SEE REF: VIII-A.1).

 SBCSELPA appreciates the service Ms. Kim provided during her term with the organization.

 Ms. Kim’s resignation will result in a 1.0 FTE vacancy for a SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator.

 SBCSELPA will evaluate current case load and distribution among the current WRAP staff
before deciding how to proceed in filling this vacancy.

FISCAL IMPACT: None at this time. 

RA:lm 

Santa Barbara County 
Special Education Local Plan Area 

A Joint Powers Agency 

71



1

Lindsay MacDonald

From: Lindsay MacDonald
Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2023 12:51 PM
To: Lindsay MacDonald
Subject: RESIGNATION - FW: Stepping away from SELPA 

From: Stephanie Guertin <sguertin@sbcselpa.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2023 8:23 AM 
To: Ray Avila <ravila@sbcselpa.org> 
Cc: Natalie Facio Leon <nfacioleon@sbcselpa.org>; Alison Lindsey <alindsey@sbcselpa.org>; Rachel Wigle 
<rwigle@sbcselpa.org> 
Subject: Stepping away from SELPA  

Ray, Alison, and Natalie, 

After a great deal of intentional thought, discussion with Sam, and a reflection on where I currently am in life as a person 
and mother, I am writing to inform you that following the end of my maternity leave, effective 1/2/2024, I will not 
return to SELPA for work.  I received this evaluation in October, tried to find childcare for months, and was anticipating 
returning in January still, however, as the weeks get closer, I am realizing the need to take care of myself and Sophia 
more.  I want to be my best self in terms of providing therapy, being a mother, daughter, and an individual person and 
right now, I cannot do it all.   

I am grateful for the time with SELPA and all I've learned.  Thank you for the opportunity and if the time arises, I can 
return, I will contact Alison.  I'll try to come clean my space and drop off keys sometime before the holidays.   

Kindly, 
Stephanie 

Sent with Genius Scan for Android 
https://dl.tglapp.com/genius-scan 

Get Outlook for Android 

REF: VIII-A.1

72



     REF: VIII-B

Date: January 17, 2024 

To: SBCSELPA JPA Board 

From: Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director 

Re: Resignation Notification from Alexis Freeborn, SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator 

BACKGROUND: 
 Alexis Freeborn notified Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director, on December 18, 2023,

in an email that she would be resigning from her position as an SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator.
(SEE REF: VIII-B.1).  Alexis last day with the SBCSELPA will be January 31, 2024.

 SBCSELPA appreciates the service Ms. Freeborn provided during her term with the
organization.

 Ms. Freeborn’s resignation will result in a 1.0 FTE vacancy for a SBCSELPA WRAP
Facilitator.

 SBCSELPA will evaluate current caseload and distribution among the current WRAP staff
before deciding how to proceed in filling this vacancy.

FISCAL IMPACT: None at this time. 

RA:lm 

Santa Barbara County 
Special Education Local Plan Area 

A Joint Powers Agency 

73



From: Lindsay MacDonald
To: Lindsay MacDonald
Subject: FW: Resignation Notice
Date: Monday, December 18, 2023 12:12:51 PM
Attachments: image001.png

From: Alexis Freeborn <AFreeborn@sbcselpa.org> 
Sent: Monday, December 18, 2023 11:46 AM
To: Ray Avila <ravila@sbcselpa.org>
Cc: Alison Lindsey <alindsey@sbcselpa.org>
Subject: Resignation Notice

Hello Ray and Alison,

Thank you so much for the opportunity to work for SELPA. It has been a wonderful experience so far
and is unfortunately being cut short due to unforeseen financial circumstances. My last day will be

Jan 31st, 2024. 

I wish you and the team all the best,
Alexis

-- 
Alexis Freeborn, MA, MFT Trainee
Wraparound Facilitator
Santa Barbara County SELPA

Cell: (805) 973-7105
Office: (805) 683-1424

REF: VIII-B.1
74

mailto:lmacdonald@sbcselpa.org
mailto:lmacdonald@sbcselpa.org
mailto:AFreeborn@sbcselpa.org
mailto:ravila@sbcselpa.org
mailto:alindsey@sbcselpa.org






 

 

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SELPA 
JOINT POWERS AGENCY BOARD 

Special Meeting 
Wednesday, January 17, 2024 

Public Session – 12:00 p.m. 
Via ZOOM – Meeting ID: 882 0161 9790 

 
ZOOM INFORMATION 

 
 
 

Topic: SBCSELPA JPA BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 
Time: Jan 17, 2024 12:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81530627944?pwd=3IbaFiyMaeeocsQHyABeUnp41tWUwr.1  
 
Meeting ID: 815 3062 7944 
Passcode: 842147 

 
One tap mobile 
+16694449171,,81530627944#,,,,*842147# US 
+12532158782,,81530627944#,,,,*842147# US (Tacoma) 
 
--- 
 
Dial by your location 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
 
Meeting ID: 815 3062 7944 
Passcode: 842147 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kQoOasuL  
  
 
 
 

 

75

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81530627944?pwd=3IbaFiyMaeeocsQHyABeUnp41tWUwr.1
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kQoOasuL

	1-17-24 JPA Board Special Mtg Agenda - FINAL
	VII-A SELPA AUDIT 2023 - FINAL
	VII-A Audit Cover Memo JPA Jan 2024
	From:  Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director
	BACKGROUND:
	RECOMMENDATIONS: The JPA Board approves the SBCSELPA Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 as presented.
	Special Education Local Plan Area
	A Joint Powers Agency


	VIII-A S. Kim Resignation
	VIII-A Memo Re Resignation of S. KIm with rays revisions
	From:  Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director
	Re: Resignation Notification from Stephanie Kim (formerly Guertin), SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator
	Special Education Local Plan Area
	A Joint Powers Agency

	VIII-A.1 S. Kim Resignation Email 12-13-23

	VIII-B A. Freeborn Resignation
	VIII-B.1 A. Freeborn - FW_ Resignation Notice
	ADP29CE.tmp
	From:  Ray Avila, SBCSELPA Executive Director
	Re: Resignation Notification from Alexis Freeborn, SBCSELPA WRAP Facilitator
	Special Education Local Plan Area
	A Joint Powers Agency


	Zoom Info - 1-17-2024
	JOINT POWERS AGENCY BOARD




